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MATTHEW R. WALSH 1 

19197 GOLDEN VALLEY RD #333 2 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91387 3 

(661) 644-0012 4 

Plaintiff In Pro Per, 5 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 6 

 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 7 

MATTHEW R. WALSH 

19197 GOLDEN VALLEY RD #333 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91387, 

Plaintiff In Pro Per, 

vs. 

ROKOKO ELECTRONICS 

(AND DOES 1 THROUGH 50, INCLUSIVE) 

31416 AGOURA RD STE 118 

WESTLAKE VILLAGE, CA  

91361 

Defendant 

Case No.: 2:25-CV-05340-ODW-RAO 

 

[Assign to Hon. Otis D. Wright, II,  

Courtroom 5D] 

 

 

NOTICE OF LODGING OF PLAINTIFFS 

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR 

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

TO STAY PROCEEDINGS UNTIL 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO STRIKE 
REMOVAL IS RULED UPON 

 

State Court Action Filed: May 12, 2025 

Removal Date: June 12, 2025 

Trial Date: None 

 8 

 9 

NOTICE OF LODGING OF PLAINTIFFS EX PARTE APPLICATION  10 

FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER TO 11 

 STAY PROCEEDINGS UNTIL  12 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO STRIKE REMOVAL IS RULED UPON 13 

 14 

 15 

TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD: 16 

 17 
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on July 6, 2025, Plaintiff Matthew R. Walsh submitted 18 

for filing via EDSS the attached Ex Parte Application for Temporary Restraining Order to 19 

Stay Proceedings Until Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Removal is Ruled Upon. 20 

 21 

To date, Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application has not been docketed or ruled upon. 22 

 23 

Plaintiff respectfully lodges the attached filing with this Court to ensure timely judicial notice 24 

and review, particularly in light of the upcoming July 15, 2025 deadline for Plaintiff’s 25 

Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss (Dkt. 42). The Ex Parte Application seeks, in the 26 

alternative: 27 

 28 

1. A temporary stay of all briefing deadlines,   29 

2. An order shortening time to hear Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike (submitted 30 

concurrently),   31 

3. A 30-day extension to oppose the MTD, and   32 

4. Leave to exceed local rule word limits due to the defective nature of Defendant’s 33 

motion. 34 

 35 

This Notice is submitted in the interest of judicial efficiency and to preserve the record pending 36 

further Court action. 37 

 38 

A true and correct copy of the Ex Parte Application is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A 39 

 40 
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DATED: July 7, 2025 41 

 42 

Matthew R. Walsh 43 

Plaintiff in pro per 44 

 45 

 46 

 47 

PROOF OF SERVICE 48 

 49 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare: 50 

 51 

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and a party to this 52 

action. My business address is 19197 Golden Valley Rd #333, Santa Clarita, CA 91387. 53 

 54 

On July 7, 2025, I served the following document(s): 55 

 56 

NOTICE OF LODGING OF EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY 57 

RESTRAINING ORDER TO STAY PROCEEDINGS UNTIL PLAINTIFF’S MOTION 58 

TO STRIKE REMOVAL IS RULED UPON 59 

 60 

☒ by transmitting a true copy via electronic mail to the following email address(es): 61 

Reed Smith LLP (Counsel for Defendant) 62 

Heather Valencia, Esq. 63 

Hvalencia@reedsmith.com 64 

 65 

 66 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 67 

foregoing is true and correct. 68 

 69 

Executed on July 7, 2025 70 

Santa Clarita, California 71 

 72 

Matthew R. Walsh 

Plaintiff In Pro Per 

 73 

 74 

 75 

  76 
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 77 

 78 

 79 

 80 

EXHIBIT A 81 
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MATTHEW R. WALSH 1 

19197 GOLDEN VALLEY RD #333 2 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91387 3 

(661) 644-0012 4 

Plaintiff In Pro Per, 5 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 6 

 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 7 

MATTHEW R. WALSH 

19197 GOLDEN VALLEY RD #333 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91387, 

Plaintiff In Pro Per, 

vs. 

ROKOKO ELECTRONICS 

(AND DOES 1 THROUGH 50, INCLUSIVE) 

31416 AGOURA RD STE 118 

WESTLAKE VILLAGE, CA  

91361 

Defendant 

Case No.: 2:25-CV-05340-ODW-RAO 

 

[Assigned to Hon. Otis D. Wright, II,  

Courtroom 5D] 

 

 

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR 

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

TO STAY PROCEEDINGS UNTIL 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO STRIKE 
REMOVAL IS RULED UPON 

 

State Court Action Filed: May 12, 2025 

Removal Date: June 12, 2025 

Trial Date: None 

 8 

 9 

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER  10 

TO STAY PROCEEDINGS UNTIL PLAINTIFF’S MOTION  11 

TO STRIKE REMOVAL IS RULED UPON 12 

 13 

 14 

TO THE HONORABLE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: 15 

 16 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE … Plaintiff respectfully applies ex parte for an order staying all 17 

briefing and responsive deadlines in this matter — including Plaintiff’s Opposition to 18 
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Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss (Dkt. 42) — until the Court has ruled on Plaintiff’s pending 19 

Motion to Strike Defendant’s Notice of Removal. 20 

 21 

IN THE ALTERNATIVE: Plaintiff seeks: (1) an order shortening time to hear the Motion to 22 

Strike Removal on regular notice and; (2) An extension of time (+30 days) to answer the Motion 23 

to Dismiss and; (3) An order granting leave of court to answer the motion outside of Local Rule 24 

word limits should the Court require Plaintiff do so. 25 

 26 

Because the pending Motion to Dismiss is procedurally defective under Local Rules 7-3, 7-4, 11-27 

6.1 and 11-6.2; and that it further arises from a removal Plaintiff contends is void ab initio, 28 

allowing the MTD briefing to proceed prior to an order granting or denying Plaintiff’s motion 29 

would irreparably prejudice Plaintiff and potentially waste judicial resources and the time of all 30 

Parties. 31 

 32 

 33 

CERTIFICATION OF CONFERENCE OF OPPOSING COUNSEL 34 

 35 

This application is made following the conference of counsel pursuant to L.R. 7-3 which took 36 

place on June 26, 2025. Submitted more than 7 days after Plaintiff met and conferred with 37 

Defendant on June 26, 2025 indicating his intention to strike the removal, file ex parte and on 38 

what grounds. Defendant indicated they would oppose. Defendant was again noticed on July 6, 39 

2025 by e-mail. 40 

 41 
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 42 

 43 

 44 

STATEMENT OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 45 

 46 

This application is based on the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the 47 

concurrently filed Supplemental Declaration of Matthew R. Walsh and attached Exhibits 1-21, 48 

the complete Court record in this case, and any evidence or argument presented at hearing. 49 

 50 

 51 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 52 

 53 

1. INTRODUCTION 54 

 55 

a. This application is made pursuant to the Court's inherent authority, Local Rule 7-19, 56 

and Fed. R. Civ. P. 6(c), on the grounds that Plaintiff will suffer irreparable prejudice 57 

absent a stay, as the currently calendared Motion to Dismiss is procedurally defective 58 

and improper 59 

 60 

b. This application is based upon this notice, the accompanying memorandum of points 61 

and authorities, the declaration of Matthew R. Walsh, all pleadings and papers on file 62 

in this action, and such further evidence and argument as the Court may permit. 63 

Case 2:25-cv-05340-ODW-RAO     Document 48     Filed 07/07/25     Page 7 of 44   Page ID
#:941



 

PAGE 4 

 64 

 65 

2. LEGAL STANDARD 66 

 67 

a. L.R. 7-3 Conference of Counsel Prior to Filing of Motions 68 

“counsel contemplating the filing of any motion must first contact opposing counsel 69 

to discuss thoroughly, preferably in person, the substance of the contemplated motion 70 

and any potential resolution. The conference must take place in person, by telephone, 71 

or via video conference at least 7 days prior to the filing of the motion.” 72 

 73 

-- This applies because at no time in this Case has Defendant’s Counsel met and 74 

conferred with Defendant until June 26, 2025; hours later they filed their Motion to 75 

Dismiss; as they did with all other filings. 76 

 77 

b. L.R. 7-4 Motions. 78 

“The Court may decline to consider a motion unless it meets the requirements of L.R. 79 

7-3 through 7-8” 80 

 81 

-- This applies because the Court struck many of Plaintiff’s motions for these 82 

violations, yet Defendant has violated them at every filing as well especially on the 83 

Motion to Dismiss. 84 

 85 

 86 
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c. Local Rule 11.6-1 Points and Authorities 87 

“no memorandum of points and authorities, pretrial brief, trial brief, or posttrial 88 

brief may exceed 7,000 words” 89 

 90 

 – This applies because Defendant’s Counsel filed a Motion to Dismiss at over 14,500 91 

words and falsely certified it as 6,999 words. 92 

 93 

d. Local Rule 11.6-2 Certificate of Compliance 94 

“must include on the last page of the document a certificate by the attorney or the 95 

unrepresented party filing the document that the document complies with the type-96 

volume limitation of L.R. 11-6.1. The person preparing the certificate may rely on the 97 

word count of the word-processing system used to prepare the document.”  98 

 99 

– This applies because Defendant’s Counsel filed a Motion to Dismiss at over 14,500 100 

words and falsely certified it as 6,999 words. 101 

 102 

e. Certain frauds upon the court cause judicial machinery to not perform properly 103 

“that species of fraud which does or attempts to, defile the court itself, or is a fraud 104 

perpetrated by officers of the court so that the judicial machinery cannot perform in 105 

the usual manner its impartial task of adjudicating cases that are presented for 106 

adjudication.” (Travelers Indemnity Company v. Gore, 761 F.2d 1549, 1552 (11th 107 

Cir.1985))  108 

 109 
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-- This applies because Defendant’s systemic misconduct in this Court – including 110 

false certification, false statements, omissions to the Court and refusal to follow Local 111 

Rules while Plaintiff is held in strict Compliance obstructs the Courts ability to fairly 112 

adjudicate motions. 113 

 114 

f. Contemptuous actions on the Court and it’s rules can be punished 115 

“The power to punish for contempts is inherent in all courts.” (Chambers v. NASCO, 116 

Inc., 501 U.S. 32, 44, 111 S.Ct. 2123 (1991))  117 

 118 

– This applies because Defendant has shown contempt for the dispute process, Local 119 

Rules, the Court and Plaintiff alike.  120 

 121 

g. Signing another attorneys name is a forged signature and documents are void. 122 

“a signature procured under false pretenses is tantamount to a forged signature.” – 123 

“those executed under false pretenses, and are void ab initio” (Weiss v. Phillips, 65 124 

N.Y.S.3d at 155–56)  125 

 126 

– This applies because forensic data shows the signature was never the final 127 

modification or addition to Defendant’s filings and therefore was evidentially placed 128 

by non-admitted, out-of-state attorneys with no pro hac vice status. 129 

 130 

h. Forging an attorneys signature, preparing or even filing is fraud on the court. 131 

“the court suspects, the petitioner created the affidavit and forged Attorney Mullins's 132 
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signature, or had someone else create the affidavit and forge Mullins's signature, the 133 

false, forged affidavit constitutes criminal perjury under 18 U.S.C. § 1621(2)” – 134 

“Whoever prepared and caused the affidavit to be filed arguably attempted to commit 135 

a fraud on the court.” (West v. United States, United States District Court, E.D. 136 

Wisconsin) 137 

 138 

 – This applies because forensic data shows the signature was never the final 139 

modification or addition to Defendant’s filings and therefore was evidentially placed 140 

by non-admitted, out-of-state attorneys with no pro hac vice status. 141 

 142 

i. Pavelic & LeFlore v. Marvel Entertainment Group, 493 U.S. 120 (1989) -- 143 

Holding that signing and filing are nondelegable responsibilities, and violations fall 144 

on the individual attorney. 145 

 146 

j. Newman-Green, Inc. v. Alfonzo-Larrain, 490 U.S. 826 (1989) -- Requires both 147 

U.S. citizenship and domicile in a state to qualify for diversity jurisdiction. 148 

 149 

k. Kanter v. Warner-Lambert Co., 265 F.3d 853 (9th Cir. 2001) -- Defines domicile 150 

as a permanent home with intent to remain. 151 

 152 

l. 28 U.S.C. § 1447(c) -- “If at any time before final judgment it appears the district 153 

court lacks subject matter jurisdiction, the case must be remanded.” 154 

 155 
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m. Rules of Professional Conduct – Rule 5.5 & Rule 9.40 -- Governing unauthorized 156 

practice and requirements for pro hac vice in California. 157 

 158 

n. CA Business & Professions Code §§ 6125 and 6126 -- Prohibit practicing law in 159 

California without a license. 160 

 161 

o. L.R. 83-2.1.1 & L.R. 83-2.1.4  -- Prohibit unauthorized practice of law by non-162 

admitted attorneys and require court approval before filing or appearing. 163 

 164 

p. ABA Rule 5.5 (a) “A lawyer shall not practice law in a jurisdiction in violation of 165 

the regulation of the legal profession in that jurisdiction, or assist another in doing 166 

so.” 167 

-- This applies because Defendant’s Counsel had only on admitted attorney of record, 168 

yet unadmitted attorney’s with no pro hac vice status authored nearly all filings and 169 

rubber stamped her name on them. 170 

 171 

q. ABA Rule 5.5 (b) A lawyer who is not admitted to practice in this jurisdiction shall 172 

not: (2) hold out to the public or otherwise represent that the lawyer is admitted to 173 

practice law in this jurisdiction. 174 

 175 

r. ABA Rule 5.5 (d) “A lawyer admitted in another United States jurisdiction or in a 176 

foreign jurisdiction, and not disbarred or suspended from practice in any jurisdiction 177 

or the equivalent thereof, or a person otherwise lawfully practicing as an in-house 178 
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counsel under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction, may provide legal services through 179 

an office or other systematic and continuous presence in this jurisdiction that: (1) are 180 

provided to the lawyer's employer or its organizational affiliates, are not services for 181 

which the forum requires pro hac vice admission;” 182 

 183 

 184 

3. ARGUMENT 185 

a. Plaintiff requests an Ex Parte application for an order to shorten the time on his 186 

Motion to Strike Notice of Removal; or in the alternative for a temporary stay of 187 

briefing on Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss. 188 

 189 

b. Plaintiff's opposition is due July 15, 2025, and without relief, Plaintiff will be forced 190 

to expend resources responding to a defective motion which is impossible to object to 191 

due to the issues raised here and likely – the entire Federal removal as well may likely 192 

be found void ab initio by this Court. 193 

 194 

c. Defendant’s MTD was knowingly filed in violation of Local Rule 7-3 (Exhibit 1, 10, 195 

12) as it was filed within hours of the only meet and confer which has ever occurred 196 

in this case due to opposing Counsel’s unwillingness to participate over the duration 197 

of this case. (Exhibit 10, 11) 198 

 199 
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d. Defendant’s Counsel intentionally violated Local Rule 7-3 and even so much as 200 

included an express admission against interest to the same (Exhibits 10, 1) 201 

 202 

e. Defendant’s filing is further defective as it was filed intentionally in violation of 203 

L.R.’s 11-6.1 and 11-6.2 as it consists of 14,600+ words (Exhibit 9) while the 204 

maximum limit is 7,000.  205 

 206 

f. To circumvent a sua sponte order striking it, Counsel stripped it of substantive 207 

headings to make it difficult to ascertain a proper count and then certified to the Court 208 

that it was 6,999 words total (Exhibit 8) when it was over twice that amount. These, 209 

and more are continuous, systemic and intentional acts “perpetrated by officers of the 210 

court so that the judicial machinery cannot perform in the usual manner” (Travelers 211 

Indemnity Company v. Gore, 761 F.2d 1549, 1552 (11th Cir.1985)) 212 

 213 

g. The MTD was filed defective and improperly despite Plaintiff’s prior written 214 

warnings to Defendant (Exhibits 2, 1, 3) of the same in which he stated: “If you feel 215 

like you have met your obligations under meet and confer, please provide your phone 216 

records and show me where it lasts more than 1 minute. Show me e-mails where you 217 

actually try to resolve litigation prior to filing motions. Show me where you provide 218 

7 days minimum before filing.” … “Call me after 1pm, that will start your 7 day 219 

clock.” (Exhibit 1). Plaintiff continually noticed and warned Defendant as it was just 220 

days after Plaintiff’s documents were stricken for the same violations as prescribed by 221 

L.R. 7-4: “The Court may decline to consider a motion unless it meets the 222 
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requirements of L.R. 7-3 through 7-8” 223 

 224 

h. Defendant’s MTD is impossible to oppose in compliance with local rules, due to it’s 225 

length of 14,600+ words. Plaintiff cannot possibly oppose even a substantial portion 226 

of their argument in under 7,000 words; thus a decision must be reached on Plaintiff’s 227 

Motion to Strike Defendant’s Removal which addresses this issue as this issue is “a 228 

fraud perpetrated by officers of the court so that the judicial machinery cannot 229 

perform in the usual manner “ (Travelers Indemnity Company v. Gore, 761 F.2d 230 

1549, 1552 (11th Cir.1985)) 231 

 232 

i. Plaintiff believes there is no possibility of Defendant establishing jurisdiction in this 233 

Court and the removal and the MTD are imminently faced with impending failure as 234 

stated in Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Removal and as summarized: 235 

 236 

i. None of Defendant’s controlling members are American citizens, they are of 237 

Danish nationality and citizenship. Newman-Green, Inc. v. Alfonzo-Larrain, 238 

490 U.S. 826 (1989) -- Requires both U.S. citizenship and domicile in a state 239 

to qualify for diversity jurisdiction. 240 

 241 

ii. The removal was entirely predicated on diversity jurisdiction; and supported 242 

by intentionally false statements under penalty of perjury (Exhibit 14) as 243 

Defendant’s primary place of business is in California (Exhibit 21); and 244 

Defendant’s CEO and co-founder are domiciled here (Exhibit 21) and have 245 
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been as early as 2016 as established under Kanter v. Warner-Lambert Co., 246 

265 F.3d 853 (9th Cir. 2001). 247 

 248 

iii. Defendant omitted an LLC from the Court (Rokoko, LLC) (Exhibit 21) which 249 

makes it’s entity a citizen of every state, and gives Superior Court jurisdiction 250 

over Federal  as found in (28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1); see also New Alaska Dev. 251 

Corp. v. Guetschow, 869 F.2d 1298, 1300-01 (9th Cir. 1989)) 252 

 253 

j. This Ex-Parte application, if granted would likely resolve all matters in this case 254 

without any harm or prejudice to either side. Plaintiff believes the entire removal to 255 

Federal Court was improper as it was: 256 

 257 

i. …Filed in the nameof an unadmitted out-of-state attorney (Michael Galibois) 258 

while Michael had no pro hac vice status  (Exhibit 16, 17, 18)  in violation of 259 

RPC Rules 5.5 & 9.40, CA B&PC 6125 & 6126 and L.R. 83-2.1.1 & L.R. 83-260 

2.1.4. Further, as detailed in Plaintiff’s concurrently filed Motion to Strike, 261 

Section I(C), incorporated herein by reference for completeness. 262 

 263 

ii. …Established with a signature from an attorney (Katherine J. Ellena), who is 264 

not listed on the removal document whatsoever (Exhibit 16, 17, 18) . Her 265 

signature being used to assist Michael Galibois in attaining a Federal Removal 266 

under false pretense in violation of ABA Model Rule 5.5(b)(1) “A lawyer 267 
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shall not practice law in a jurisdiction in violation of the regulation of the 268 

legal profession in that jurisdiction, or assist another in doing so.”  269 

 270 

iii. …Continuously and almost entirely performed by non-admitted attorneys 271 

before and even after they were noticed removed from docket for no pro hac 272 

vice status (Exhibit 15-20).; and continually warned by Plaintiff (Exhibit 5-7) 273 

which is intentional and continuous violation of ABC Model Rule 5.5(d)(1): 274 

“are provided to the lawyer's employer or its organizational affiliates, are not 275 

services for which the forum requires pro hac vice admission;” 276 

 277 

iv. …Concluded by expert forensic research (Exhibits 15-20)  clearly showing 278 

the last modification to the documents occurred in the Eastern Time Zone; 279 

where unadmitted attorneys live and work and communicated from (Exhibit 280 

15) and not in the Pacific Time Zone where the only admitted attorney – 281 

Katherine J. Ellena lives and works making any signature not placed by her, 282 

or placed prior to the authoring of any documents -- a forgery under West v. 283 

United States, Weiss v. Phillips, , 18 U.S.C. § 1621(2)) 284 

 285 

k. Plaintiff has attempted to resolve these matters (Exhibit 1 – 7) with Defendant 286 

through meet and confer correspondence, however, Defendant is and was always 287 

unwilling to cure obvious defects (Exhibits 10 - 13) ; of which (L.R.’s 11-6.1 & 11-288 

6.2) which sets a procedural trap for Plaintiff whether he opposes in time, or not. 289 

 290 
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l. Plaintiff has notified opposing counsel of this ex parte application in compliance with 291 

L.R. 7-19.1. Declaration of Matthew R. Walsh filed concurrently herewith. 292 

 293 

 294 

 295 

 296 

DATED: July 6, 2025 297 

Respectfully submitted, 298 

 299 
Matthew R. Walsh 300 

19197 Golden Valley Rd #333 301 

Santa Clarita, CA 91387 302 

matthew@winteryear.com 303 

(661) 644-0012 304 

Plaintiff in pro per 305 

  306 
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 307 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 308 

The undersigned, counsel of record for Plaintiff appearing in pro per, certifies that this brief 309 

contains 2,166 words, which complies with the word limit of L.R. 11-6.2. 310 

 311 

The memorandum of points and authorities is less than 10 pages in length and so does not 312 

require a table of contents in compliance with L.R. 11-8. 313 

 314 

 315 

DATED: July 6, 2025 316 

 317 
Matthew R. Walsh 318 

Plaintiff in pro per 319 

 320 

 321 

 322 

 323 

 324 
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DECLARATION OF MATTHEW R. WALSH 325 

IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS EX PARTE APPLICATION 326 

FOR TRO / STAY PROCEEDINGS 327 

 328 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare: I am the Plaintiff. I have personal knowledge of the 329 

following facts and, if called as a witness, I could and would testify competently thereto. I 330 

submit this declaration in support of Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for TRO and Motion to Stay 331 

Proceedings. 332 

1. Exhibit 1 – Plaintiff warned Defendant of L.R. 7-3 requirements one day before meet 333 

and confer; started 7-day clock. Defendant filed anyway. 334 

 335 

2. Exhibit 2 – Plaintiff notified Defendant their filing was defective the next day and 336 

reiterated 7-3 timeline. 337 

 338 

3. Exhibit 3 – Plaintiff again notified Defendant of procedural defects and requested 339 

meet and confer to strike MTD; also addressed counsel conduct. 340 

 341 

4. Exhibit 4 – Plaintiff advised Defendant as early as June 20 of ongoing forensic 342 

analysis of filings. 343 

 344 

5. Exhibit 5 – Plaintiff removed unadmitted counsel from email chain; Defendant re-345 

added them, showing their central role. 346 

 347 

6. Exhibit 6 – Plaintiff disclosed forensic findings and offered opportunity to cure. 348 

Defendant responded only with now-approved pro hac vice filings. 349 

 350 

7. Exhibit 7 – Defendant never addressed unauthorized practice allegations, only 351 

submitted pro hac filings in response. 352 

 353 

8. Exhibit 8 – Defendant certified their MTD was 6,999 words. 354 

 355 

9. Exhibit 9 – Actual word count of Defendant’s MTD is 14,636. 356 

 357 

10. Exhibit 10 – Defendant admits June 26 was the only valid meet and confer under 358 

L.R. 7-3; email exchanges don’t satisfy the rule. 359 

 360 
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11. Exhibit 11 – Defendant claimed Plaintiff was uncooperative, despite over 50 emails 361 

sent between June 12–27, 2025. 362 

 363 

12. Exhibit 12 – Only one call from counsel Katherine Ellena — on the day she filed — 364 

in violation of L.R. 7-3. 365 

 366 

13. Exhibit 13 – Only one call from unadmitted counsel Emily Graue; meet and confers 367 

were under 3 minutes. Defendant refused engagement. 368 

 369 

14. Exhibit 14 – Defendant falsely stated under oath they were never a California 370 

corporation. 371 

 372 

15. Exhibit 15 – Email headers and metadata confirm filings originated from unadmitted, 373 

out-of-state counsel (Graue, Galibois). 374 

 375 

16. Exhibit 16 – Civil case cover sheet was not prepared by admitted counsel or anyone 376 

with pro hac status. 377 

 378 

17. Exhibit 17 – Cover sheet used to remove case was authored by unadmitted counsel 379 

who forged a local signature. 380 

 381 

18. Exhibit 18 – Notice of removal was initiated in Los Angeles, completed by 382 

unadmitted, out-of-state attorneys. 383 

 384 

19. Exhibit 19 – Ex parte motion for extension of time authored over 8 hours by 385 

unadmitted counsel. Local counsel touched it for ~30 minutes. 386 

 387 

20. Exhibit 20 – Declaration of Katherine J. Ellena was not written by her. Metadata 388 

shows out-of-state attorneys completed it. 389 

 390 

21. Exhibit 21 – A visual aid showing Defendant is more California than Delaware and 391 

Denmark combined. 392 

 393 

 394 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025, in Santa Clarita, California. 395 

 396 

 397 
Matthew R. Walsh 398 

Plaintiff in pro per 399 

 400 

Case 2:25-cv-05340-ODW-RAO     Document 48     Filed 07/07/25     Page 21 of 44   Page ID
#:955



 

PAGE 18 

EXHIBIT 1 401 

One day prior to the only meet and confer ever in this case, Plaintiff warned Defendant of the 7-3 402 

requirements and their deficiencies therein to comply. Further, Plaintiff makes it clear: meet and 403 

confer is the beginning of the 7 day clock. Defendant filed anyways. 404 

 405 

 406 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 407 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 408 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  409 

 410 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  411 

 412 

  413 
Matthew R. Walsh 414 

Plaintiff in pro per 415 

  416 
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EXHIBIT 2 417 

Plaintiff notified Defendant the day after that their filings were defective and further reasserted 418 

that he told them prior to the filing so they may file a valid answer or demurrer instead. 419 

 420 

 421 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 422 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 423 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  424 

 425 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  426 

 427 

  428 
Matthew R. Walsh 429 

Plaintiff in pro per 430 

  431 
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EXHIBIT 3 432 

Plaintiff notified Defendant again that their filings were defective; how they were defective and 433 

further requesting a meet and confer to strike that document separately. Additionally, Plaintiff 434 

noticed Defendant regarding their conduct and behavior during the meet and confer. 435 

 436 

 437 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 438 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 439 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  440 

 441 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  442 

 443 

  444 
Matthew R. Walsh 445 

Plaintiff in pro per 446 

  447 
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EXHIBIT 4 448 

Plaintiff notified Defendant as early as June 20, 2025 that he had begun forensic analysis of their 449 

documents. 450 

 451 

 452 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 453 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 454 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  455 

 456 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  457 

 458 

  459 
Matthew R. Walsh 460 

Plaintiff in pro per 461 

  462 
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EXHIBIT 5 463 

Plaintiff once again removes Michael Galibois and Emily Graue from the e-mail chain, each 464 

time, Defendant re-adds them; demonstrating they were critical to the function of these 465 

proceedings. 466 

 467 

 468 

 469 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 470 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 471 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  472 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  473 

 474 

  475 
Matthew R. Walsh 476 

Plaintiff in pro per 477 

  478 
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 479 

EXHIBIT 6 480 

Plaintiff notified Defendant’s Counsel of the forensic findings and gave them the opportunity to 481 

cure/remove themselves from record before sanctions would be sought. All they responded back 482 

with was the now-approved pro hac vice applications, approved that same day, never addressing 483 

the matter further. 484 

 485 

 486 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 487 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 488 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  489 

 490 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  491 

 492 

  493 
Matthew R. Walsh 494 

Plaintiff in pro per 495 

  496 
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EXHIBIT 7 497 

Defendant never addresses the unauthorized practice of law of Michael Galibois and Emily 498 

Graue, instead, they just sent the applications now approved in response. 499 

 500 

 501 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 502 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 503 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  504 

 505 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  506 

 507 

  508 
Matthew R. Walsh 509 

Plaintiff in pro per 510 

  511 
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EXHIBIT 8 512 

Defendant’s word count certificate of Compliance: 6,999 words; despite it being 14,500+ words 513 

 514 

 515 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 516 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 517 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  518 

 519 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  520 

 521 

  522 
Matthew R. Walsh 523 

Plaintiff in pro per 524 

  525 
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EXHIBIT 9 526 

Defendant’s word count pursuant to local rules is 14,636. 527 

 528 

 529 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 530 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 531 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  532 

 533 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  534 

 535 

  536 
Matthew R. Walsh 537 

Plaintiff in pro per 538 

  539 
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EXHIBIT 10 540 

Defendant admits that this call, occurring on June 26, 2025, the same day she filed, was the first 541 

and only valid meet and confer as required under the 2025 Local Rules. Prior written e-mail 542 

correspondence does not satisfy the rule. Further, claims of hearsay are inadmissible. 543 

 544 

 545 

 546 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 547 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 548 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  549 

 550 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  551 

 552 

  553 
Matthew R. Walsh 554 

Plaintiff in pro per 555 

  556 
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EXHIBIT 11 557 

Defendant’s Counsel claims Plaintiff has been “uncooperative” to meet and confer, yet Plaintiff 558 

has sent over 50 emails from June 12, 2025 – June 27, 2025 regarding the case. 559 

  560 
 561 

 562 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 563 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 564 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  565 

 566 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  567 

 568 

  569 
Matthew R. Walsh 570 

Plaintiff in pro per 571 

  572 
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EXHIBIT 12 573 

Only one phone call ever occurred from Counsel Katherine J. Ellena. The day she filed the 574 

motion to dismiss, entirely ignoring the 7-3 rule Plaintiff has been struck for. 575 

 576 
 577 

 578 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 579 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 580 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  581 

 582 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  583 

 584 

  585 
Matthew R. Walsh 586 

Plaintiff in pro per 587 

  588 
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EXHIBIT 13  589 

Only 1 call from Emily Graue, unadmitted counsel, removed from docket, no pro hac vice status 590 

still acting as active counsel. Meet and confer sessions never lasted more than 3 minutes, many 591 

were sub 1 minute. Plaintiff called Defendant 3x, Defendant’s counsel did not want to engage. 592 

Even under the older 2024 local rule 7-3, this is not “contact opposing counsel to discuss 593 

thoroughly, preferably in person, the substance of the contemplated motion and any potential 594 

resolution”. Defendant never wanted to discuss anything. 595 

 596 
 597 

 598 

 599 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 600 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 601 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  602 

 603 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  604 

 605 

  606 
Matthew R. Walsh 607 

Plaintiff in pro per 608 

  609 
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EXHIBIT 14 610 

Defendants false statement under penalty of perjury that they have never been a California 611 

Corporation before or after filing. This was shown to be false. 612 

 613 
  614 
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 615 
 616 

 617 

 I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 618 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 619 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  620 

 621 

Executed this 6 day of July, 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  622 

 623 

  624 
Matthew R. Walsh 625 

Plaintiff in pro per 626 

  627 
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 628 

EXHIBIT 15 629 

Defendant’s counsel Emily Graue and Michael Galibois are both only licensed to practice law in 630 

Illinois. Both are with ReedSmith in Chicago. Emily’s email headers, return a timezone of 631 

Eastern (UTC -04:00), this timezone matches all metadata from the documents allegedly 632 

authored by local counsel – indicating they are instead authored by counsel without pro hac vice 633 

status and not licensed to practice law in California. 634 

 635 
I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 636 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 637 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  638 

 639 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  640 

 641 

 642 
Matthew R. Walsh 643 

Plaintiff in pro per  644 

  645 
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EXHIBIT 16 646 

The civil case cover sheet was not authored by admitted counsel, or any counsel of record; nor 647 

counsel legally allowed to practice law in the state of California with no pro hac vice status. 648 

 649 

 650 
 651 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 652 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 653 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  654 

 655 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  656 

 657 

 658 
Matthew R. Walsh 659 

Plaintiff in pro per  660 

  661 
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EXHIBIT 17 662 

The civil case cover sheet, which was used to remove Plaintiff’s case was entirely authored by 663 

unadmitted counsel with no pro hac vice status, who forged a local attorney signature and then 664 

sent it to Los Angeles to be filed. 665 

 666 

 667 

 668 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 669 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 670 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  671 

 672 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  673 

 674 

 675 
Matthew R. Walsh 676 

Plaintiff in pro per  677 

  678 
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EXHIBIT 18 679 

The notice of removal was originated in Los Angeles and then completed over the course of 680 

about 4 hours by unadmitted counsel with no pro hac vice status.  681 

 682 

 683 
 684 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 685 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 686 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  687 

 688 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  689 

 690 

 691 
Matthew R. Walsh 692 

Plaintiff in pro per  693 

  694 
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EXHIBIT 19 695 

The ex-parte motion for extension of time was completed by out of state, unadmitted counsel 696 

with no pro hac vice status over the period of about 8 hours. Defendant’s local counsel spent 697 

roughly 30 minutes on the document prior to prepare it for Emily or Michael to complete it. 698 

 699 

 700 
 701 

 702 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 703 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 704 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  705 

 706 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  707 

 708 

 709 
Matthew R. Walsh 710 

Plaintiff in pro per  711 

  712 
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EXHIBIT 20 713 

Defendant’s local counsel spent about 30 minutes on Katherine J. Ellena’s declaration and then 714 

unadmitted counsel with no pro hac vice status finished the document over about an additional 715 

42 minutes and 36 seconds. She wrote to the Court “I, Katherine J. Ellena, declare:” and signed 716 

it with her name and “I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 717 

and the United States that the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was 718 

executed on June 16, 2025, in Los Angeles, California.” However, those statements are false as 719 

this document was not written by her. 720 

 721 

 722 
 723 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 724 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 725 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  726 

 727 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  728 

 729 

 730 
Matthew R. Walsh 731 

Plaintiff in pro per  732 

  733 
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EXHIBIT 21 734 

A visual aid showing Defendant and their members are more California than Delaware and 735 

Denmark combined and doubled. 736 

 737 

 738 
I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 739 

that this is a true and correct copy of a document I personally received, created, or obtained in 740 

connection with this case, and it has not been materially altered.  741 

 742 

Executed this 6 day of July 2025 in Santa Clarita, California.  743 

 744 

 745 
Matthew R. Walsh 746 

Plaintiff in pro per  747 

  748 
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 749 

 750 

PROOF OF SERVICE 751 

 752 

I, Matthew R. Walsh, declare: 753 

 754 

I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and a party to this 755 

action. My business address is 19197 Golden Valley Rd #333, Santa Clarita, CA 91387. 756 

 757 

On July 6, 2025, I served the following document(s): 758 

 759 

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER TO STAY 760 

PROCEEDINGS UNTIL PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO STRIKE REMOVAL IS RULED 761 

UPON 762 

 763 

☒ by transmitting a true copy via electronic mail to the following email address(es): 764 

Reed Smith LLP (Counsel for Defendant) 765 

Heather Valencia, Esq. 766 

Hvalencia@reedsmith.com 767 

 768 

 769 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 770 

foregoing is true and correct. 771 

 772 

Executed on July 6, 2025 773 

Santa Clarita, California 774 

 775 

Matthew R. Walsh 

Plaintiff In Pro Per 

 776 

 777 

 778 
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